Committee Agenda

Webcast

—')) Epping Forest

Meeting District Council

Area Planning Subcommittee West
Wednesday, 22nd February, 2012

Place: Council Chamber, Civic Offices, High Street, Epping
Room: Council Chamber

Time: 7.30 pm

Democratic Services Mark Jenkins - The Office of the Chief Executive
Officer Email: democraticservices@eppingforestdc.gov.uk Tel:

01992 564607
Members:
Councillors J Wyatt (Chairman), Mrs E Webster (Vice-Chairman), R Bassett, J Collier,

Mrs R Gadsby, D C Johnson, Ms Y Knight, Mrs J Lea, W Pryor, A Mitchell MBE,
Mrs M Sartin, Mrs P Smith, Ms S Stavrou and A Watts

A BRIEFING FOR THE CHAIRMAN, VICE-CHAIRMAN AND
APPOINTED SPOKESPERSONS WILL BE HELD AT 7.00 P.M. IN
COMMITTEE ROOM 1 ON THE DAY OF THE SUB-COMMITTEE.

WEBCASTING NOTICE

Please note: this meeting may be filmed for live or subsequent broadcast via the
Council's internet site - at the start of the meeting the Chairman will confirm if all or
part of the meeting is being filmed.

You should be aware that the Council is a Data Controller under the Data Protection
Act. Data collected during this webcast will be retained in accordance with the
Council’s published policy and copies made available to those that request it.

Therefore by entering the Chamber and using the lower public seating area, you are
consenting to being filmed and to the possible use of those images and sound
recordings for web casting and/or training purposes. If members of the public do not
wish to have their image captured they should sit in the upper council chamber public
gallery area

If you have any queries regarding this, please contact the Senior Democratic Services
Officer on 01992 564249.



Area Planning Subcommittee West Wednesday, 22 February 2012

1. WEBCASTING INTRODUCTION

1. This meeting is to be webcast. Members are reminded of the need to activate
their microphones before speaking.

2. The Chairman will read the following announcement:

“I would like to remind everyone present that this meeting will be broadcast live to the
Internet and will be capable of repeated viewing and copies of the recording could be
made available for those that request it.

If you are seated in the lower public seating area it is likely that the recording cameras
will capture your image and this will result in the possibility that your image will
become part of the broadcast.

This may infringe your human and data protection rights and if you wish to avoid this
you should move to the upper public gallery”

2. ADVICE TO PUBLIC AND SPEAKERS AT COUNCIL PLANNING
SUBCOMMITTEES (Pages 5 - 8)

General advice to people attending the meeting is attached.
3. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE
4, MINUTES (Pages 9 - 16)

To confirm the minutes of the last meeting of the Sub-Committee held on 25 January
2012 as a correct record (attached).

5. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
(Assistant to the Chief Executive) To declare interests in any item on this agenda.
6. ANY OTHER BUSINESS

Section 100B(4)(b) of the Local Government Act 1972, together with paragraphs 6 and
25 of the Council Procedure Rules contained in the Constitution requires that the
permission of the Chairman be obtained, after prior notice to the Chief Executive,
before urgent business not specified in the agenda (including a supplementary agenda
of which the statutory period of notice has been given) may be transacted.

In accordance with Operational Standing Order 6 (non-executive bodies), any item
raised by a non-member shall require the support of a member of the Committee
concerned and the Chairman of that Committee. Two weeks' notice of non-urgent
items is required.

7. DEVELOPMENT CONTROL (Pages 17 - 36)

(Director of Planning and Economic Development) To consider the planning
applications set out in the attached schedule

Background Papers
0] Applications for determination — applications listed on the schedule, letters of
representation received regarding the applications which are summarised on the

2



Area Planning Subcommittee West Wednesday, 22 February 2012

schedule.

(i) Enforcement of Planning Control — the reports of officers inspecting the
properties listed on the schedule in respect of which consideration is to be given to the
enforcement of planning control.

8. DELEGATED DECISIONS

(Director of Planning and Economic Development) Schedules of planning applications
determined by the Head of Planning and Economic Development under delegated
powers since the last meeting of a Plans Subcommittee may be inspected in the
Members’ Room or at the Planning and Economic Development Information Desk at
the Civic Offices, Epping.

9. EXCLUSION OF PUBLIC AND PRESS

Exclusion

To consider whether, under Section 100(A)(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the
public and press should be excluded from the meeting for the items of business set
out below on grounds that they will involve the likely disclosure of exempt information
as defined in the following paragraph(s) of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Act (as
amended) or are confidential under Section 100(A)(2):

Agenda Item No Subject Exempt Information
Paragraph Number
Nil Nil Nil

The Local Government (Access to Information) (Variation) Order 2006, which came
into effect on 1 March 2006, requires the Council to consider whether maintaining the
exemption listed above outweighs the potential public interest in disclosing the
information. Any member who considers that this test should be applied to any
currently exempted matter on this agenda should contact the proper officer at least 24
hours prior to the meeting.

Confidential tems Commencement
Paragraph 9 of the Council Procedure Rules contained in the Constitution require:

(1) All business of the Council requiring to be transacted in the presence of the
press and public to be completed by 10.00 p.m. at the latest.

(2) At the time appointed under (1) above, the Chairman shall permit the
completion of debate on any item still under consideration, and at his or her
discretion, any other remaining business whereupon the Council shall proceed
to exclude the public and press.

(3) Any public business remaining to be dealt with shall be deferred until after the
completion of the private part of the meeting, including items submitted for
report rather than decision.

Background Papers

Paragraph 8 of the Access to Information Procedure Rules of the Constitution define
background papers as being documents relating to the subject matter of the report
which in the Proper Officer's opinion:

(a) disclose any facts or matters on which the report or an important part of the

3



Area Planning Subcommittee West Wednesday, 22 February 2012

report is based; and

(b) have been relied on to a material extent in preparing the report and does not
include published works or those which disclose exempt or confidential
information (as defined in Rule 10) and in respect of executive reports, the
advice of any political advisor.

Inspection of background papers may be arranged by contacting the officer
responsible for the item.



Agenda ltem 2

Advice to Public and Speakers at Council Planning Subcommittees
Are the meetings open to the public?

Yes all our meetings are open for you to attend. Only in special circumstances are
the public excluded.

When and where is the meeting?

Details of the location, date and time of the meeting are shown at the top of the front
page of the agenda along with the details of the contact officer and members of the
Subcommittee.

Can | speak?

If you wish to speak you must register with Democratic Services by 4.00 p.m. on
the day before the meeting. Ring the number shown on the top of the front page of
the agenda. Speaking to a Planning Officer will not register you to speak, you must
register with Democratic Service. Speakers are not permitted on Planning
Enforcement or legal issues.

Who can speak?

Three classes of speakers are allowed: One objector (maybe on behalf of a group),
the local Parish or Town Council and the Applicant or his/her agent.

Sometimes members of the Council who have a prejudicial interest and would
normally withdraw from the meeting might opt to exercise their right to address the
meeting on an item and then withdraw.

Such members are required to speak from the public seating area and address the
Sub-Committee before leaving.

What can | say?

You will be allowed to have your say about the application but you must bear in mind
that you are limited to three minutes. At the discretion of the Chairman, speakers
may clarify matters relating to their presentation and answer questions from Sub-
Committee members.

If you are not present by the time your item is considered, the Subcommittee will
determine the application in your absence.

Can | give the Councillors more information about my application or my
objection?

Yes you can but it must not be presented at the meeting. If you wish to send
further information to Councillors, their contact details can be obtained through
Democratic Services or our website www.eppingforestdc.gov.uk. Any information
sent to Councillors should be copied to the Planning Officer dealing with your
application.

Page 5



How are the applications considered?

The Subcommittee will consider applications in the agenda order. On each case they
will listen to an outline of the application by the Planning Officer. They will then hear
any speakers’ presentations.

The order of speaking will be (1) Objector, (2) Parish/Town Council, then (3)
Applicant or his/her agent. The Subcommittee will then debate the application and
vote on either the recommendations of officers in the agenda or a proposal made by
the Subcommittee. Should the Subcommittee propose to follow a course of action
different to officer recommendation, they are required to give their reasons for doing
sO.

The Subcommittee cannot grant any application, which is contrary to Local or
Structure Plan Policy. In this case the application would stand referred to the next
meeting of the District Development Control Committee.

Further Information?

Can be obtained through Democratic Services or our leaflet “Your Choice, Your
Voice’

Page 6



New!

Use your Smartphone/tablet to find contact
details of the members using this QR code

Area Planning Subcommittee West 2011-12

Members of the Committee:

Clir Bassett

Clir
Johnson

Clir Knight

Clir Lea

Clir Pryor

Clir Mitchell

Clir Sartin

Clir Smith

Clir Stavrou

Clir Watts

Page 7




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 8



Agenda ltem 4

EPPING FOREST DISTRICT COUNCIL
COMMITTEE MINUTES

Committee:  Area Planning Subcommittee West Date: 25 January 2012

Place: Council Chamber, Civic Offices, Time: 7.30 -8.20 pm
High Street, Epping

Members JWyatt  (Chairman), Mrs E Webster  (Vice-Chairman), R Bassett,
Present: Mrs R Gadsby, MsY Knight, Mrs J Lea, A Mitchell MBE, Mrs M Sartin,
Mrs P Smith and A Watts

Other
Councillors:

Apologies: D C Johnson

Officers J Godden (Planning Officer), R Perrin (Democratic Services Assistant) and
Present: G J Woodhall (Democratic Services Officer)

42, WEBCASTING INTRODUCTION

The Chairman made a short address to remind all present that the meeting would be
broadcast on the Internet, and that the Council had adopted a protocol for the
webcasting of its meetings.

43. WELCOME AND INTRODUCTION

The Chairman welcomed members of the public to the meeting and outlined the
procedures and arrangements agreed by the Council, to enable persons to address
the Sub-Committee in relation to the determination of applications for planning
permission.

44, MINUTES
Resolved:

(1 That the minutes of the meeting of the Sub-Committee held on 21 December
2011 be taken as read and signed by the Chairman as a correct record.

45, DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

(a) Pursuant to the Council's Code of Member Conduct, Councillors R Bassett
and J Wyatt declared a personal interest in the following item on the agenda by virtue
of being a substitute member of the Lea Valley Regional Park Association. The
Councillors had determined that their interest was not prejudicial and would remain in
the meeting for the consideration of the item and voting thereon:

. EPF/2411/11 Devoncot, Carthegena Estate, Nazeing.

(b) Pursuant to the Council's Code of Member Conduct, Councillor Mrs M Sartin

declared a personal interest in the following item on the agenda item by virtue of
being a member of the Lea Valley Regional Park Association. The Councillor had

Page 9 1



Area Planning Subcommittee West 25 January 2012

46.

47.

48.

determined that her interest was not prejudicial and would remain in the meeting for
the consideration of the item and voting thereon:
. EPF/2411/11 Devoncot, Carthegena Estate, Nazeing.

(c) Pursuant to the Council's Code of Member Conduct, Councillor Mrs E
Webster declared a personal interest in the following item on the agenda by virtue of
being a member of the Lea Valley Regional Park Association and having been
involved with the site for a number of years. The Councillor had determined that her
interest was prejudicial and would leave the meeting for the consideration of the item
and voting thereon:

. EPF/2411/11 Devoncot, Carthegena Estate, Nazeing.

ANY OTHER BUSINESS

The Sub-Committee noted that there was no other urgent business for consideration
at the meeting.

DEVELOPMENT CONTROL
The Sub-Committee considered a schedule of applications for planning permission.
Resolved:

(1) That the planning applications numbered 1 — 4 be determined as set out in
the schedule attached to these minutes.

DELEGATED DECISIONS
The Sub-Committee noted that details of planning applications determined by the
Director of Planning & Economic Development under delegated authority since the

last meeting had been circulated to all members, and were available for inspection at
the Civic Offices.

CHAIRMAN

Page 10 2



Report Item No: 1

Minute ltem 47

APPLICATION No:

EPF/2314/11

SITE ADDRESS:

Units 4 and 5

Millbrook Business Park
Hoe Lane

Nazeing

Essex

EN9 2RJ

PARISH:

Nazeing

WARD:

Lower Nazeing

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL:

External alterations of two existing units to create five self
contained business units.

DECISION:

Grant Permission (With Conditions)

Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case:
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/AnitelM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH _TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=532782

The applicant also stated he would create a pedestrian walkway from the units to Hoe Lane. As
he does not own all the land this could not be conditioned, but his intention to do the necessary
works in conjunction with the landowner of the other unit was welcomed by Committee.

CONDITIONS

1. The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of
three years beginning with the date of this notice.

2. The development hereby permitted will be completed strictly in accordance with the
approved drawings nos: 6813/P10 Rev: A, 6813/P11 Rev: A, 6813/P12 Rev: A

3. Materials to be used for the external finishes of the proposed development shall
match those of the existing building.

4. The parking area shown on the approved plan shall be retained free of obstruction
for the parking of staff and visitors vehicles.

Page 31




Report Item No: 2

APPLICATION No:

EPF/2350/11

SITE ADDRESS:

Crown Hill Nursery
Crown Hill
Waltham Abbey
Essex

EN9 3TF

PARISH:

Waltham Abbey

WARD:

Waltham Abbey High Beach

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL:

Telecommunication application for the extension of the
existing lattice tower by 5m and addition of 3 No. antennas.

DECISION:

Grant Permission (With Conditions)

Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case:

http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/AnitelM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH TYPE=1&DOC CLASS CODE=PL&FOLDER1 REF=532871

CONDITIONS

1. The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of
three years beginning with the date of this notice.

PRggel 2




Report Item No: 3

APPLICATION No: EPF/2380/11
SITE ADDRESS: 90 Eastbrook Road
Waltham Abbey
Essex
EN9 3AL
PARISH: Waltham Abbey
WARD: Waltham Abbey Honey Lane
DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL.: | Erection of two semi detached dwelling houses
DECISION: Grant Permission (With Conditions)

Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case:
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/AnitelM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH _TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=533028

CONDITIONS

1.

The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of
three years beginning with the date of this notice.

The development hereby permitted will be completed strictly in accordance with the
approved drawings nos: HP/08/025/1 rev ¢, HP/08/025/2a, HP/08/025/3a

No construction works above ground level shall have taken place until documentary
and photographic details of the types and colours of the external finishes have been
submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority, in writing, prior to the
commencement of the development. The development shall be implemented in
accordance with such approved details.

Prior to first occupation of the development hereby approved, the proposed window
openings in the northern elevation shall be entirely fitted with obscured glass and
have fixed frames to a height of 1.7 metres above the floor of the room in which the
window is installed and shall be permanently retained in that condition.

Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town & Country Planning General Permitted
Development Order 1995 (or of any equivalent provision in any Statutory Instrument
revoking or re-enacting that Order), no additional windows shall be installed within
the first floor of the northern elevation of the dwellings hereby approved.

Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning General Permitted
Development Order 1995 as amended (or any other order revoking, further
amending or re-enacting that order) no development generally permitted by virtue of
Part 1, Class A, B and C shall be undertaken without the prior written permission of
the Local Planning Authority.

The parking area shown on the approved plan shall be provided prior to the first

occupation of the development and shall be retained free of obstruction for the
parking of residents and visitors vehicles.

Page %3




The development shall be carried out in accordance with the details within the Flood
Risk Assessment carried out by gta civils Itd. Ref: 3389/2.3.

PRggel 8



Report Item No: 4

APPLICATION No: EPF/2411/11
SITE ADDRESS: Devoncot
Carthegena Estate
Nazeing
Waltham Abbey
Essex
EN106TA
PARISH: Nazeing
WARD: Lower Nazeing
DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL: | Use of site for private gypsy/traveller site for one family
comprising two mobile homes, two touring caravans and utility
building.
DECISION: Grant Permission (With Conditions)

Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case:
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/AnitelM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH _TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=533160

CONDITIONS

1.

The use hereby permitted shall be carried on only by Mr and Mrs Delaney and their
resident dependants, and shall be for a limited period being the period of 5 years
from the date of this decision, or the period during which the premises are occupied
by them, whichever is the shorter.

When the land ceases to be occupied by those named in condition 1 above, or at
the end of 5 years, whichever shall first occur, the use hereby permitted shall cease
and all caravans, buildings, structures, materials and equipment brought on to the
land, or works undertaken to it in connection with the use shall be removed and the
land restored to its condition before the development took place.

No more than 4 caravans, as defined in the Caravan Sites and Control of
Development Act 1960 and the Caravan Sites Act 1968 (of which no more than 2
shall be static mobile homes) shall be stationed on the site at any time.

Unless within 3 months of the date of this decision a Flood Risk Assessment is
submitted in writing to the Local Planning Authority for approval, and unless the
approved scheme is implemented within 3 months of the Local Planning Authority's
approval, the use of the site hereby permitted shall cease until such time as a Flood
Risk Assessment is approved and implemented; and if no scheme in accordance
with this condition is approved within 18 months of the date of this decision, the use
of the site hereby permitted shall cease until such time as a scheme approved by
the Local Planning Authority is implemented.

There shall be no stationing or parking of LGVs or vehicles over 3.5T on site, and no
commercial or business uses shall take place at any time on the site.

Page 75




This page is intentionally left blank

PRggel 8



Agenda ltem 7

AREA PLANS SUB-COMMITTEE ‘WEST’
22 February 2012

INDEX OF PLANNING APPLICATIONS

OFFICER
ITEM REFERENCE SITE LOCATION PAGE
RECOMMENDATION
Lane End
4 Nursery Road Grant Permission
1. EPF/2467/11 Nazeing _ N 19
Waltham Abbey (With Conditions)
) EPF/2477/11 111 Monkswood Avenue Grant Permission o4
' Waltham Abbey (With Conditions)
Land Rear of 66 -70 Western G .
rant Permission
3. EPF/2556/11 Road 28
Nazeing (With Conditions)

Page 17



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 18



Report Item No: 1

APPLICATION No: EPF/2467/11
SITE ADDRESS: Lane End
4 Nursery Road
Nazeing
Waltham Abbey
Essex
EN9 2JE
PARISH: Nazeing
WARD: Lower Nazeing
APPLICANT: Mr Garry Leach
DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL: | Retrospective application for the insertion of window to side
elevation.
RECOMMENDED DECISION: Grant Permission (With Conditions)

Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case:

http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/AnitelM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH TYPE=1&DOC CLASS CODE=PL&FOLDER1 REF=533366

CONDITIONS

1 Within six weeks of the date of this decision notice the window opening hereby
approved in the north east flank elevation at ground floor level facing Claremont
shall be entirely fitted with obscured glass to prevent views into Claremont and shall
have fixed frames to a height of 1.7 metres above the floor of the room in which the
window is installed and shall be permanently retained in that condition.

This application is before this Committee since the recommendation is for approval contrary to an
objection from a local council which is material to the planning merits of the proposal (Pursuant to
The Constitution, Part Three: Planning Directorate — Delegation of Council function, Schedule 1,
Appendix A.(g))

Description of Site:

Nursery Road forms a ribbon of development on the northern side of this laneway. The subject site
is within the boundaries of the Metropolitan Green Belt and contains a chalet style bungalow with
rooms in the roof served by front and rear dormer windows. The dwelling is long and elongated,
owing to the plot width, and the property is served by a relatively long rear garden area. An
orangery extension has recently been added to the rear elevation (EPF/1885/11). The property is
bordered to the north east by a similar style dwelling, Claremont, and there is a fall of
approximately 0.50m to this property from the application site.

Page 19




Description of Proposal:

The applicant seeks consent to retain a window which has been inserted in the north east side
elevation at ground floor level facing the adjacent dwelling, Claremont. The window is currently
clear glazed. Consent is required owing to Condition 1 on planning application RES/EPF/0596/01
which stated;

Notwithstanding the provision of the Town and Country Planning General Permitted Development
Order 1995 (or of any equivalent provisions of any Statutory Instrument revoking or re-enacting
that Order) no windows other than any shown on the approved plan shall be formed in the flank
walls of the building hereby permitted without the prior written approval of the Local Planning
Authority.

Reason: To safeguard the privacy of adjacent properties.

This application was for a replacement dwelling.

Relevant History:

The most relevant and recent planning history is as follows;

EPF/0351/94 - Outline application for the erection of one 4 bed replacement dwelling. Grant
Permission (with conditions) - 26/07/1994.

26/07/1994 - Renewal of permission EPF/351/94 - Outline application for the erection of a 4 bed
replacement dwelling. Grant Permission (with conditions) -

23/12/1997.

EPF/1059/00 - Renewal of permission EPF/909/97 - Outline application for the erection of a 4 bed
replacement dwelling. Grant Permission (with conditions) — 11/09/00.

RES/EPF/0596/01 - Reserved matters application for erection of a replacement dwelling. Grant
Permission (with conditions) - 01/06/2001.

EPF/1885/10 - Addition of orangery to rear of property. Grant Permission (with conditions) —
03/11/10.

EPF/1044/11 - Non material amendment to EPF/1885/10 (Addition of orangery to rear of property).
Approved — 16/10/11.

Policies Applied:

DBES9 — Loss of Amenity

SUMMARY OF REPRESENTATIONS:

2 neighbours consulted — 1 reply received.

CLAREMONT: Objection. Loss of our young families secure private living space. The window
allows unimpeded views into our dining/living area. We believe the window should be a smaller
unit in order to get building regulations approval.

NAZEING PARISH COUNCIL: Objection. This is a breach of a condition on the original consent
and as such should be enforced. The view from the window intrudes on the privacy of the
adjoining residents.

Issues and Considerations:

The main issue to consider relates to neighbour amenity.

Page 20



Neighbour Amenity

It is clear that the condition was originally intended to ensure that any future development with
regards to flank elevation windows in Lane End would fall under the control of the Local Planning
Authority where it could be judged accordingly. Such a safeguard was put in place as there is the
potential for excessive impact on the amenities of occupants of the neighbouring dwelling. The
condition does not state that no window, under any circumstances, would be acceptable. The
works on site have been completed and the window serves what was once the rear living room of
the dwelling. An orangery has since been added (EPF/1885/10) along the rear elevation of the
dwelling. The proposed window is not necessary to meet building regulations approval, a
mechanical vent providing ventilation to the room would suffice. The orangery ensures a good
supply of light to the living room from its bi-fold doors and lantern light. The issue is therefore not
need, but whether the retention of the window in its current state would result in an excessive loss
of amenity to the occupants of the adjacent dwelling, Claremont.

This property had approval for a chalet style dwelling in the same period as Lane End
(RES/EPF/1980/01). There are a number of windows serving habitable rooms from the side
elevation as per the approved plans. The reason for the condition on Lane End is with regards to
the fall in levels to Claremont.

The site visit carried out by officers on 19/01/12 afforded the opportunity to visit both dwellings,
which are the subject of this matter. The window, owing to its elevated position, is visible above
the fence from the private living space of Claremont. It is also clear that views into the private living
space of Claremont are achievable from the window serving the living room of Lane End. Such
development usually falls outside the control of Local Planning Authorities, however in this
instance the condition brings it under Local Planning Authority control. It is therefore considered
that owing to the evidence on site justifying the reasoning for the condition, in this instance the
privacy of the occupants of the adjacent dwelling has been compromised and a material loss of
amenity has occurred.

As stated the window is not necessary to achieve building regulations approval and, in the
assessment of officers, is not necessary to provide light to the living area. A condition more
common with first floor windows requires that side windows are obscured glazed and fixed shut to
a height of 1.7m above the floor of the room in which they are installed. In this instance such a
condition is deemed necessary and would rectify the current loss of amenity being experienced by
occupants of Claremont. Therefore the retention of the window is acceptable with the proviso that
within an agreed timeframe such measures are put in place to permanently safeguard the
amenities of occupants of Claremont.

A condition agreeing an increase in the height of the fence, or a trellis between the windows, has
been considered. However the fence is already to a height of 1.8m which is conventional. The
approach outlined above is deemed a more suitable arrangement to overcome the issues outlined
as the windows serving Claremont are much more necessary for natural light to the dining area.
Members may feel that an increase in the fence or a trellis is a suitable solution to this problem.

Conclusion:

The proposal to retain the ground floor side facing window at Lane End is deemed acceptable
providing that the window is obscure glazed and fixed shut to a height of 1.7m above the floor of
the room in which the window is installed and permanently retained in such a condition in
perpetuity. It is therefore recommended that the application is approved with such a condition in
place.

Page 21



Should you wish to discuss the contents of this report item please use the following
contact details by 2pm on the day of the meeting at the latest:

Planning Application Case Officer: Mr Dominic Duffin
Direct Line Telephone Number: (01992) 564336

or if no direct contact can be made please email:
contactplanning@eppingforestdc.gov.uk

Page 22



Epping Forest District Council

Area Planning Sub-Committee West

~——
~~<

Blacklands

(

The material contained in this plot has been

reproduced from an Ordnance Survey map Agenda Item 1

with the permission of the Controller of Her Number:

Majesty's Stationery. (c) Crown Copyright. . . X

Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown Appllcatlon Number: EPF/2467/11

Copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil "

proceedings. Site Name: Lane End, 4 Nursery Road
EFDC licence No.100018534 Scale of Plot !]\l/?|22e5Igg’ EN9 2JE

Page 23




Report Item No: 2

APPLICATION No: EPF/2477/11
SITE ADDRESS: 111 Monkswood Avenue
Waltham Abbey
Essex
EN9 1LJ
PARISH: Waltham Abbey
WARD: Waltham Abbey North East
APPLICANT: Mr Nigel Savage

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL: | Application for removal of condition 5 'Off street parking' of
planning permission EPF/2509/07. (Erection of a detached
dwelling with garage and access and revised access to no.
111 Monkswood Avenue. Amended application)

RECOMMENDED DECISION: Grant Permission (With Conditions)

Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case:

http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/AnitelM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH TYPE=1&DOC CLASS CODE=PL&FOLDER1 REF=533392

CONDITIONS

1 Within three months from the date of this decision details of a scheme to
permanently close the existing vehicular crossover on The Cobbins shall be
submitted to and agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Such works will
be carried out in accordance with these agreed details within an agreed time scale.

This application is before this Committee since the recommendation is for approval contrary to an
objection from a local council which is material to the planning merits of the proposal (Pursuant to
The Constitution, Part Three: Planning Directorate — Delegation of Council function, Schedule 1,
Appendix A.(g))

Description of Site:

The application site consists of No. 111 and the relatively newly erected detached dwelling within
the side garden known as No. 113 Monkswood Avenue. Both properties have off-street parking
within their front gardens (accessed from Monkswood Avenue) and there is an existing dropped
kerb on The Cobbins installed to serve the properties, however the access to the site is fenced off
by a close boarded fence.

Description of Proposal:

Application for removal of condition 5 of planning permission EPF/2509/07. The original consent
was for “the erection of a detached dwelling with garage and access and revised access to no. 111
Monkswood Avenue”. The condition is the following:

Page 24




The parking area shown on the approved plans shall be provided prior to the first
occupation of the development and shall be retained free of obstruction for the
parking of residents and visitors vehicles.

Relevant History:

EPF/0544/07 - Erection of a detached dwelling with garage and access and revised access to no.
111 Monkswood Avenue — approved/conditions 07/06/07

EPF/2509/07 - Erection of a detached dwelling with garage and access and revised access to no.
111 Monkswood Avenue (amended application) — approved/conditions 17/01/08

EPF/0191/09 - New dwelling house within rear garden of no’s. 111 and 113 Monkswood Avenue —
refused 23/04/09 (dismissed on appeal 26/01/10)

EPF/0084/11 - Erection of a detached garage with a studio within the roof space — refused
14/03/11 (appeal dismissed 17/08/11)

CLD/EPF/2232/11 - Certificate of lawful development for proposed single storey garage — not
lawful 30/11/11

Policies Applied:

ST4 — Road safety
ST6 — Vehicle parking.

Consultation Carried Out and Summary of Representations Received:

18 neighbours were consulted. No Site Notice was required.

TOWN COUNCIL — Object as the proposed change will increase on street parking which would
have an adverse effect on road and pedestrian safety.

26 THAXTED WAY - Object as this condition is assumed to have been imposed to ease the
congested parking on this corner of Monkswood Road. This situation has not changed.

28 THAXTED WAY - Object as there is not adequate parking on this site.

Issues and Considerations:

The original condition was imposed on the approved development to encourage parking to the rear
and to avoid a dominance of car parking within the front garden. However no condition was added
to restrict parking at the front, and as such this is now used regardless of the original condition.
The rear section of the site is not used for parking and is currently enclosed by a close boarded
fence.

This current application has been received as a result of enforcement investigations, as the
erection of a fence is contrary to this condition, which reads “shall be retained free of
obstruction”. However, the replacement of this fence with a gate would not ensure that the area is
actually used for parking so would be of no real benefit to the parking situation in the area.

Whilst the original intention of Planning Officers was to discourage off-street parking within the
front gardens, which has occurred regardless, this is not uncommon within Monkswood Avenue
and therefore is not unduly detrimental to the appearance of the street scene. There is sufficient
space within the front gardens of both No. 111 and No. 113 Monkswood Avenue to provide three
off-street parking spaces to No. 111 and two to No. 113, which is all that is required by the Essex
County Council Vehicle Parking Standards.

Page 25



Whilst the area of land is not currently used for parking and is enclosed by a close boarded fence,
there is a vehicle crossover serving the land. It is not considered that the removal of this condition
would have any further undue impact on the character or appearance of the street scene or the
parking situation within the area, as it would not force residents to park to the rear, just to keep it
available for parking. However, if this condition is removed and the fence is retained then the
vehicle crossover should be closed and the grass verge reinstated, which would free up an
additional on-street parking space. Such works can be sought by the imposition of a new
condition.

Conclusion:

In conclusion, it is considered that the removal of this condition would not have any further
detrimental impact on the appearance or character of the street scene or the existing on-street
parking situation. The refusal of this application would not ensure that the area of land to the rear
is actually used by the residents of the site for parking, and therefore would not be of any benefit,
however the approval of this application could be conditioned to ensure that the existing vehicle
crossover on The Cobbins is removed and the grass verge is reinstated, which would provide an
additional on-street parking space for public use. Due to this, the application is recommended for
approval.

Should you wish to discuss the contents of this report item please use the following
contact details by 2pm on the day of the meeting at the latest:

Planning Application Case Officer: Graham Courtney
Direct Line Telephone Number: 01992 564228

or if no direct contact can be made please email: contactplanning@eppingforestdc.qov.uk

Page 26



Epping Forest District Council

\ / \ ol \
( \ 2
\ / — 0 \\ %
’(:’ \ \‘ ]
)
) \\ 7
\\\_,,—’ LT
=3 \
’/’ \
1
- \
\
El Sub Sta
21 \ | P/ ¥
\ B\
\ / B 4 | \
+ /,//’ N\ ‘\
= A \
..... == \ \
,///// o \! \
== \ \
P \ \
L8 P \ \\
P + \ \
== \ \
/”’ \\ \
- \ \\
- \
- \ \
A \ \
\ \
\\ \‘
v ‘\ \
\ |
R
wY 1] ]!
N R
A |
) M
=7/ N/ T~ -
,/”’/z/ // - \\\
- -7 s =
/””’ /’// — = B'\
‘(\ //,,// 5 a
-~
en >
ol omst"“ »
53 \\\ A0
\
o\ \
- \ >
- — ©
\ o ©
:: P = 0V w\unso“woo“
’/,/’/ - El Sub Sta
,/”// [
0%
&
The material contained in this plot has been
reproduced from an Ordnance Survey map Agenda Item 2
with the permission of the Controller of Her Number:
Majesty's Stationery. (c) Crown Copyright. . . X
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown App"catlon Number: EPF/2477/11
Copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil "
proceedings. Site Name: 111 Monkswood Avenue,
Waltham Abbey, EN9 1LJ
EFDC licence No.100018534 Y,
Scale of Plot: 1/1250



Report Item No: 3

APPLICATION No:

EPF/2556/11

SITE ADDRESS: Land Rear of 66 -70 Western Road
Nazeing
Essex
EN9 2QQ

PARISH: Nazeing

WARD: Lower Nazeing

APPLICANT: Bidmead, Constantinou, Smith and Cooper

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL:

Proposed 2 no. three bedroom detached two storey houses
with integral garages and parking fronting Wheelers Close
(amended application to EPF/0054/11 - allowed on appeal -
amendments include larger kitchen areas, changes to and
new windows, increased front porch roof and alterations to
front parking area at No. 8 Wheelers Close.)

RECOMMENDED DECISION:

Grant Permission (With Conditions)

Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case:
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/AnitelM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS CODE=PL&FOLDER1 REF=533713

CONDITIONS

1 The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of
three years beginning with the date of this notice.

2 The development hereby permitted will be completed strictly in accordance with the
approved drawing no: BF/6111.001 received 15th December 2011

3 No construction works above ground level shall have taken place until documentary
and photographic details of the types and colours of the external finishes have been
submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority, in writing, prior to the
commencement of the development. The development shall be implemented in
accordance with such approved details.

4 No development shall take place until the hedge on the western boundary of the site
and the trees shown on the approved plan No BF/6111.001 (received 15th
December 2011) as being retained (and any trees whose canopies overhang the
site) have been protected by strong fencing, the location and type to be previously

approved in writing by the local planning authority. The fencing shall be erected in
accordance with the approved details before any equipment, machinery or materials
are brought onto the site for the purposes of the development, and shall be
maintained until all equipment, machinery and surplus material have been removed
from the site. Nothing shall be stored or placed within any fenced area, and the
ground levels within those areas shall not be altered, nor shall any excavation be
made without the prior written consent of the local planning authority.

Page 28



Reason: To ensure that the amenity value of the existing trees are safeguarded.

Prior to commencement of the development details showing the means to prevent
the discharge of surface water from the development onto the highway shall be
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The approved
scheme shall be carried out in its entirety prior to the access becoming operational
and shall be retained at all times.

No development shall take place until a Construction Method Statement has been
submitted to, and approved in writing by, the local planning authority. The approved
Statement shall be adhered to throughout the construction period. The Statement
shall provide for:

a) the parking of vehicles of site operatives and visitors

b) loading and unloading of plant and materials

c) storage of plant and materials used in constructing the development

d) wheel cleaning facilities

e) measures to control the emission of dust and dirt during construction

f) a scheme for recycling/disposing of waste resulting from site preparation and

construction works

Prior to first occupation of the development hereby approved, the proposed window
openings in the first floor flank elevations shall be entirely fitted with obscured glass
and have fixed frames to a height of 1.7 metres above the floor of the room in which
the window is installed and shall be permanently retained in that condition.

The garages and car parking spaces hereby permitted shall be provided before the
occupation of the dwelling hereby permitted and shall be kept available for the
parking of motor vehicles at all times. The garage/car spaces shall be used solely
for the benefit of the occupants of the dwelling of which forms part and their visitors
and for no other purpose and shall be permanently retained as such.

No unbound material shall be used in the surface treatment of the vehicular access
within 6 metres of the highway boundary.

This application is before this Committee since the recommendation is for approval contrary to an
objection from a local council which is material to the planning merits of the proposal (Pursuant to
The Constitution, Part Three: Planning Directorate — Delegation of Council function, Schedule 1,
Appendix A. (g9))

This application is before this Committee since it for a type of development that cannot be
determined by Officers if more than two objections material to the planning merits of the proposal
to be approved are received (Pursuant to The Constitution, Part Three: Planning Directorate —
Delegation of Council function, Schedule 1, Appendix A.(f).)

This application is before this Committee since it has been ‘called in’ by Councillor Bassett
(Pursuant to The Constitution, Part Three: Planning Directorate — Delegation of Council function,
Schedule 1, Appendix A.(h))

Page 29



Description of Site:

The site is formed from the rear of gardens serving 66-70 Western Road. The proposed plot
maintains a comparable depth to that provided along the eastern side of Wheelers Close and the
proposed dwellings would front Wheelers Close opposite numbers 7 and 9. The application site
would be accessed from a private access off the existing turning head in Wheelers Close. The
ground level rises from the entrance from Wheelers Close to Western Road and beyond. There is
a drainage ditch indicated to be for run off in the locality that runs inside and along the western
side of the site adjacent to the boundary. The application site is within the built up area of
Nazeing, outside of the Green Belt and Conservation Area.

Description of Proposal:

This proposal seeks amendments to a previously allowed on appeal scheme which allowed two
detached houses with garages fronting Wheelers Close within the rear gardens of 66-70 Western
Road. The amendments include larger kitchen areas to the rear, changes to and new windows
(including bay windows to the ground floor front windows), increased front porch roofs and
alteration to the front parking area at No. 8 Wheelers Close. The two houses are mirror images of
each other.

Relevant History:

EPF/0054/11 - Proposed 2 no. three bedroom detached two storey houses with integral garages
and parking fronting Wheelers Close — Refused but allowed at appeal (Copy of appeal decision
attached as Appendix 1)

Policies Applied:

Epping Forest District Local Plan and Alterations
CP1 - Achieving sustainable development objectives
CP2 - Quality of Rural and Built Environment
CP3 - New Development

H3A - Housing Density

H4A - Dwelling mix

H5A - Provision for affordable housing

H6A - Thresholds for affordable housing

H7A - Levels for affordable housing

DBE1 - Design of new buildings

DBE2 - Effect on neighbouring properties

DBES - Design in urban areas

DBES5 - Design and Layout of new Development
DBE6 - Car parking in new development

DBES8 - Private amenity space

DBE9 - Loss of amenity

LL10 - Provision for landscape retention

LL11 - Landscaping schemes

ST1 - Location of development

ST2 - Accessibility of development

ST4 - Road Safety

ST6 - Vehicle parking

Summary of Representations:

NAZEING PARISH COUNCIL — Objections as with previous application EPF/0054/11. Access is
inadequate and could cause problems for emergency services. There is encroachment onto land

Page 30



belonging to No. 7 and No. 5 Wheelers Close. There are no 2 ' storey properties in Wheelers
Close. It would be obtrusive and be back yard development. It would contravene policies DBE1,
DBE2, DBES5 (ii), DBEG, DBES8, and DBE9 of the adopted Local Plan and Alterations. Although the
original application was allowed on appeal this is an increase in size. If this application is allowed
then further permitted development rights should be withdrawn or restricted and an agreement be
put in place that the garage cannot be re-developed into a room. Letter of objections received
from residents of Wheelers Close.

NEIGHBOURS

25 neighbours were consulted and a site notice erected

5 letters of OBJECTION received:

1 WHEELERS CLOSE - Objections as EPF/0054/11, proposal will further add to ongoing
drainage problems

2 WHEELERS CLOSE — Objection — out of keeping with Wheelers Close, problems with access,
foul sewer issues, parking issues (during construction also)

5 WHEELERS CLOSE — Objections as per EPF/0054/11, highway safety issues, Wheelers Close
is too small for this development.

6 WHEELERS CLOSE - Object to amendment, development has increased kitchen size to
recognise 4 bedroom size. Erosion of streetscene and highway safety, porch addition adds to
imposing nature, new high landing window will overlook garden

7 WHEELERS CLOSE — Objections remain as to EPF/0054/11, increased traffic, parking is
minimal, Wheelers Close is already congested, imposing and ongoing boundary dispute.

Issues and Considerations:

The previous proposal has been allowed at Appeal, and therefore the principle of the development
in this location has been accepted. Therefore the main issues with the application are whether the
proposed changes are acceptable and whether these changes have any significant impact on:

e Design and the Streetscene
¢ Neighbouring Amenity
¢ Highway Safety and Parking

Design

The design of the proposals is essentially the same with the alterations to the front windows and
front porch roofs relatively minor in nature and are not considered to disrupt the appearance of the
streetscene in this location. The changes to the rear extend the kitchen to the same depth as the
garage element of the proposals and again are considered an acceptable design squaring off the
rear of the property.

Amenity

It is not considered that the revisions to the existing scheme will have any significant impact on
neighbouring amenity. Although concern has been raised by one neighbour to the proposed new
landing window with regards to loss of privacy, it is intended that this will be obscured glazed and
this can be conditioned as such to avoid any overlooking issues. Given that the two new landing
windows will be directly opposite each other, obscuring this window also prevents any loss of
privacy to future occupiers of the properties.

With regards to the amenity of the future occupiers of the site, the proposed extension to the
kitchen areas does remove some of the proposed rear garden areas. The addition of the kitchen

Page 31



extensions will result in rear garden areas of approximately 100m? although smaller than
previously approved this amount of garden space complies with policy DBE8. Furthermore as
outlined below, this size of extension could in any event be completed under permitted
development once the property is built.

Highway Safety and Parking

The revisions to the proposal retain the same number of parking spaces and access arrangements
as previously approved. The Essex County Council Highways Engineer has raised no objections
to the proposal as it is not contrary to County or Local policies. With regards to construction traffic
the Planning Inspectorate imposed a condition requiring a Construction Method Statement which
would include details regarding construction parking and this is considered to overcome these
concerns.

Other Matters

Although several neighbours and the Parish Council have stated that their objections are the same
as with the previous application, the principle of two houses in this location has been accepted and
the previously approved development can still be built. As an additional matter, when planning
permission was granted at appeal, permitted development rights were not removed by condition.
Therefore, although planning permission is required for the rear extension and porch roof at
present because the houses have not yet been built, these aspects could in any event be built
under permitted development once the properties have been built and occupied.

The Parish Council has suggested removing permitted development rights, however the Inspector
concluded that these should only be withdrawn in ‘exceptional circumstances’ and it is not
considered that these amendments fall within this criteria. With regards to the Parish Council’s
suggestion to condition the retention of the garages to avoid further development, the Planning
Inspector imposed such a condition on the Appeal decision and this can be copied to this current
application if approved.

A number of issues have also been raised by neighbours which are beyond planning control such
as:

Foul sewer/drain issues - which are a private matter for the service operator and drain owners to
consider.

Boundary disputes - are again a Civil Matter between affected parties. For the land subject of this
application the applicant has declared ownership.

Conclusion:
Notwithstanding neighbour and Parish Council objections and the issues discussed above, the
amendments to the previously approved scheme are considered acceptable and therefore

approval with conditions is recommended.

Should you wish to discuss the contents of this report item please use the following
contact details by 2pm on the day of the meeting at the latest:

Planning Application Case Officer: Marie-Claire Tovey
Direct Line Telephone Number: 01992 564371

or if no direct contact can be made please email: contactplanning@eppingforestdc.qgov.uk

Page 32



Appendix 1

[ he Planning

ian Inspectorate

Appeal Decision

Site visit made on 1 Novemnber 2011

by K E Down MA{Oxon) MSc MRTPI MBS
an .In:p:dnr appointed by the Seoetary of State for Communities and Local Govarnmeent

Decision date: 11 November 2011

Appeal Ref: APP/I1535/A/11/2157201
66~70 Western Road, Nazeing, Waltham Abbey, EN9 2Q0Q

-

The appeal is made under section 78 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 against
a refusal to grant planning permission,

Thea appeaal is made by Mr John Bldmead, Mrs ChRisting Conslantinda, M Ulair Smith
and Mr & Mrs Cooper against the decision of Epping Forest District Council.

The application Ref PL/EPF/0054/11, dated & January 2011, was refused by notice dated
8 June 2011.

The development proposed is 2Ne x 3 bedroom detached 2 storey houses with integral
garage and parking.

Decision

1.

The appeal is allewed and planning permission is granted for 2Mo x 3 bedroom

" detached 2 storey houses with integral garage and parking at 66-70 Western

Road, Nazeing, Waltham Abhey, ENS 200 in accordance with the terms of the
appllcatlon Ref FLYEFF/O054/11, dated & Januar}r 2011, subject to the
following conditions:

1) ' The development hereby permll:ted shall begin not later than three years
fram the date of this decision.

2} The developrment hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance
with the following approved plans: BF/6111.001 [4™ revision],
BF/61111.002.

3}  No development shall take place until details of the materlals Lo be used
in the external surfaces of the dwellings hereby permitted have been

submitted to and agreed in writing by the local planning authority. The
development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details.

4] Mo development shall take place until the hedge on the western boundary
of the site and the trees shown on the approved plan Ne BE/6111.001 as
being retained {(and any trees whose canopies overhang the site) have
been protected by strong fencing, the location and type to be previously
approved in writing by the local planning authority. The fencing shall he
erected in accordance with the approved details before any equipment,
machinery cr materials are brought onto the site for the purposes of the
develepment, and shall be maintained until all eguipment, machinery and
surplus materials have been removed from the site, Nothing shall be
stored or placed within any fenced area, and the ground levels within

www.planningportal.gov.uk/planninginspectarate

EPPME FOREST DETRICT GIAREL

14 NOV 201

PLERNG SERWCES

Page 33



Appaal Decision APF/J15235/4/11/2157201

those areas shall not be altered, nor shall any excavation be made,
without the prior written consent of the local planning authority.

5)  No development shall take place until details showing the maans ta
prevent the discharge of surface water from the development site onto
the highway have been submitted to and approved in writing by the local
planning autharity, The approved scheme shall be implemented prior to
the site access becoming operational and shall be retained at all times,

‘6] No dewvelopment shall take place until a Construction Method Statement

has been submitted to, and approved in writing by, the local planning
authorty, The approved Statement shall be adhered to throughout the
construction period, The Statement shall provide far;

a) the parking of vehicles of site aperatives and visitors
b} leading and unloading of plant and materials

€} storage of plant and materials used in constructing the
development

d} wheel cleaning facilities.

e) measures to cantral the emission of dust and dirt during
construction 1

' f} a scheme for rec'.rclingfdispcrsinﬁ of waste resulting from site
preparation and construction works

7)  The garages and car parking spaces hereby permitted shall be provided
hefore the occupation af the dwellings hereby permitted and shall be kept
available far the parking of motor vehicles at all times. The garage/car
spaces shall Be used solely for the benefit of the occupants of the
dwelling of which it forms part and their visitors and for no other purpose
and shall be permanently retained as such.

B]  MNe unbound material shall be used in the surface treatment of the
vehicular access within 6 metres of the highway boundary.

Procedural matters

Z.

Although not included In the description of development it is clear from the
evidence, including the submitted plans, that the proposal includes the
provision of a single garage to serve 8 Wheelers Close. The Councll has not
objected to this aspect of the development and 1 agree that it would be
acceptable. I have therefore restricted my further consideration to matters of
dispute between the parties, including third parties. '

I am aware of a dispute regarding the ownership of a strip of land within the
appeal site. However, this is a civil matter between the parties and not ane
over which I have jurisdiction. It is clear from the evidence that all parties with
an alleged interest in the site are aware of the proposals and of this appeal.

4,

There are two main issues. Firstly, the effect of the proposed dwellings an the

_character and appearance of Wheelers Close and the surrounding area; and

sacondly, the effect of the proposed dwellings on the living conditions of
occupiers of 7 and 9 Wheealers Close with respect to outloolk, privacy and
sunlight.

Page 34



Appeal Declsion APR/IL535/A 11/ 2157201

15,

16.

17.

Third parties point cut that the appeal site currently comprises rear garden
land. [t is correct that gardens have been removed from the definition of
previously developed land set out in Planning Policy Staternent 3 (PPS3):
Housing and this is to prevent so called “garden grabbing”. However, the
intentton of the pﬂllc‘y‘ alteration is to ensure that Councils have greater control
over where development should take place in their area. The evidence--
demonstrates thak the Council has-considered this matter and conﬂun:led that in

‘this case the.appeal:site, whilst comprising garden land, is.in principle an i

acceptable infill plot in a sustainable location with satlsfacturyr access to. the
street. I'have no compelling reason to disagree, o

Concerns are also raised regarding surface water drainage, lacal sewerag!
capacity and disruption during the construction period. Owing to the level of
the site being abowve that of the highway, it is necessary to ensure that proper
provision is made to control the discharge of surface water from the site. This
could be required by condition. With regard to sewerage, the Council has not
identified any planning issue and it is for the developer te arrange connection
to the main sewer or make alternative provision if this is nok feasible. Finally,
wihilst some disruption during a period of construction is inevitable, especially
wihen a site is within an existing residential area, a condition requiring a
construction method statement to be submitted and agreed would ensure that
disruption In Wheelers Close was minimised,

A number of other issues have been raised by third parties whlm [ have
considered but none of these alter my findings on the main [ssues oF my
cnndusion that the proposcd development wnuld be arxeptable. : ;

Cond.rtmns e ;

18.

In addltlon to the conditions I have already LdEﬂtlﬁEﬂ as necessary the C:}unv.:ll
has suggested a number of further conditions, - have mnsudered,thq:se in the
context of advice sét out in Circular 11/95: The Use of Conditions in Planning
Permissions. In some cases 1 have adjusted the wording for clarity or to comply
with the circular, [ agree that in order to protect the character and appearance
of the area details of materials to be used in the external surface of the
dwellings should be agreed. To aveid loose material spilling onto the highway it
is also necessary Lo regquire the surface of the vehicular acoess to be
constructed of bound material for the first 8m into the site. Finally, for the
avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning it is necessary to
require the development to be carried out in accordance with the approved
plans, except as otherwise set out in this decision and conditions, The Council
suggests a condition withdrawing permitted development rights for extensions
and outbuildings. Howewver, these rights should only be withdrawn in
exceptional circumstances which I am not aware would apply in this case, I do
not therefore propose to impose this cendition,

Conclusions

19,

For the reasons set out above and h'axrlng regard to all other matters raised I
conclude that the appeal should be allowed,

K E Doun
INSPECTOR

= |t v 2o

Bin  ME SLTANES

Page 35



Epping Forest District Council

Area Planning Sub-Committee West

e e sy e’ | Agenda Item 3

with thel permission of the Controller of Her Number:

Unauthorised reproduction nfringés Grown | Application Number: | EPF/2556/11

g&pc}:;%?:;:d may lead to prosecution or civl Site Name: Land Rear of 66 -70 Western Road
EFDC licence No.100018534 Scale of Plot: !]\Ilp:‘lzzeSIgg, EN9 2QQ

Page 36



	Agenda
	2 Advice to Public and Speakers at Council Planning Subcommittees
	Area Planning Subcommittee West - members photo sheet 11-12

	4 Minutes
	7 Development Control
	West 22 Feb 2012


